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Regional Municipality of Durham RFP-1153-2021

Part 1 — Invitation and Submission Instructions

Part 1 Invitation and Su ion Instructions

1.1 Invitation to P on

This Request for proposals (the an invitation by the Regional Municipality of
Durham Fft;;e Réglon”) to prospe ponents to submit proposals for Economic
Developmeﬁ{'zgndtfﬁourlsm strate i lan 2022-2026, as further described in
Section D-1 ogﬁe R'%P particule [ he “Deliverables”).

O <

1)
The top priorities %is fiv -year s

establishing the funda%ntﬁexcelle einqu of place that will attract investment and

enable economic grow h@n? motion a

high-quality job creation a@g@ensﬂy yment lan e.

l\.

1.2 RFP Contact FS?’}?;,F_ s

“&s

< ©
For the purposes of this procuremQﬁgrd&%gs the Co
Ca €
Steven Finlay, C.P.P.B., Procurement fce
All questions are to be submitted throuﬁ'th éf)mlt a on within the
Bidding System, not through email to the@';P act.

Proponents and their representatives are not per d@'contact ny employees, officers,
agents, elected or appointed officials or other represeﬁtatlves of the Region, other than the
RFP Contact, concerning matters regarding this RFP. ‘f/ga‘}lure to adhere to this rule may

result in the disqualification of the proponent and the rejection of the proponent’s proposal.
1.3 Type of Contract for Deliverables

The selected proponent will be required to enter into an agreement with the Region for the
provision of the Deliverables in the form attached as Appendix A to the RFP (the
“‘Agreement”).
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Regional Municipality of Durham RFP-1153-2021

Part 1 — Invitation and Submission Instructions

1.4

1.5

1.6

RFP Timetable

Issue date of RFP Friday, April 30™, 2021

Deadline for questions

Deadline‘ifn‘;l iss%g adde
Submissiof%’%dﬁ:{fj
n C

Tuesday, May 11t 2021
Tuesday, May 18, 2021
riday, May 28t 2021

Anticipated execution de@e‘for ag 2021

O

e changed by the Region at any time.

1.6.1 Proposals to be Submitted éifﬁrég}?r'bed Loeation

o
Proposals must be submitted at %Reqi?n of Dur
durham.bidsandtenders.ca Gﬁ '??(“

42
2 A
1.6.2 Proposals to be Submitted On Time "‘é; O
djﬁ‘**
Proposals must be submitted on or before the{':Submission Deadline. Proposals
submitted after the Submission Deadline will n‘gt.\be accepted. Proponents are
advised to make submissions well before the deadline. Proponents making

submissions near the deadline do so at their own risk.
1.6.3 Proposals to be Submitted Electronically

All proponents shall have a Bidding System vendor account and be registered as
a Plan Taker for this opportunity, which will enable the proponent to download the
solicitation document, to receive addenda email notifications, download addenda

and submit their proposals electronically through the Bidding System.
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Regional Municipality of Durham RFP-1153-2021

Part 1 — Invitation and Submission Instructions

1.6.4

1.6.5
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Proponents are cautioned that the timing of their bid submission is based on when

n recommends that proponents allow sufficient

E:gthe  above reasens,

timeto pl

i ét}_o upé?’ad their subrg

any IS'-%,[GS @ﬁt may 3

Region’s Bidding System
Vo

Proponentg}%puﬁg@_ontact

to deadline if %y engounter any pr

confirmation em t ropon

tachment(s) (if applicable) and to resolve

ate and time shall be determined by the

ct at least twenty-four (24) hours prior
idding System will send a

en

‘ e proposal was submitted
successfully. If pro@nen%,o not receive a ¢ ation email, they should
contact the RFP Con a}%,ﬁinfr@‘édiately.

<
To ensure receipt of the Iﬁg tf‘n%&mation s via email regarding this
opportunity, or if a proponen s?)%tained t icitati ument from a third
party, the onus is on the propon§ht @eate a Biddi tem Vendor Account

and register at Region of Durha id website . dtenders.ca)
as a plan taker for this opportunity. Oﬁ 'ffo
A 0D
Amendment of Proposals H‘j,- '®)
0

Proponents may amend their proposals prior.to the Submission Deadline.
However, the proponent is solely responsible fﬁ:\ensuring that the amended

proposal is received by the Bidding System by the Submission Deadline.
Withdrawal of Proposals

Proponents may withdraw their proposals prior to the Submission Deadline.
However, the proponent is solely responsible for ensuring that the withdrawn

proposal is withdrawn through the Bidding System by the Submission Deadline.


https://durham.bidsandtenders.ca/Module/Tenders/en

Regional Municipality of Durham RFP-1153-2021

Part 1 — Invitation and Submission Instructions

1.6.6 Proposals Irrevocable after Submission Deadline

1.6.7
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Regional Municipality of Durham RFP-1153-2021

Part 2 — Evaluation and Award

211{%:]& @I—

S@ I’,@u,ll consi i ermine which proposals comply with
all of the datory [ irements. Proposals that do not
comp;%nth a(gjof the ssion Requirements as of the
Submlss'ﬁzDégdllne wi ' the express and implied rights of the

Region, be g_f,sqj?aljﬁed and n
Submission uir f_@ents ar

(Appendix D). ’5?,?

No Amendment to %m@

O

er. The Mandatory
ed in Secti -3 of the RFP Particulars

%‘"5”

e
Other than inserting the (t@grm@ﬁon requested on the
submission forms set out in‘the , @ proponent

changes to any of the forms. pr’é}osal con
whether on the face of the form @rgls@here in the pro

P,

disqualified. AR
2.0

21.2 Stage Il — Evaluation '“'j::a
1:',‘-‘

Stage Il will consist of the following two suﬁz:\stages.

2.1.21 Mandatory Technical Requirements

Stage Il will consist of a review of the proposals to determine
if they also satisfy all of the Mandatory Technical
Requirements listed in Section D-4 of the RFP Particulars
(Appendix D). Failure to satisfy all of the Mandatory
Technical Requirements, subject to the express and implied

rights of the Region, will be cause for disqualification and the

Page 8 of 22



Regional Municipality of Durham RFP-1153-2021

Part 2 — Evaluation and Award

2.2

2.3

bid will not evaluated further. This provision is solely for the

of the Region and may be waived by the Region.

2.1.2.

evaluate each qualified proposal on the
-price rated criteria as set out in Section D-6

s (Appendix D).
2.1.3 Stééﬁ W[Z Pricing

Stagfﬂ?will sist of @iscoring of submitted pricing of each qualified
proposa?ﬂfaccogdance with the
Part 4, Elec ic‘l?:dam Instr

undertaken aft@he@view of mandatory ements and evaluation of

J
rated criteria ha\@ee g;.zmpleted.
_.f_

T
Selection of Top-Rankf@ﬂZ‘o“épnent

e evaluation method set out in the

ring of price will be

~Q
, [
After the completion of Stage llI, aﬁ};e rom Stage Il an

added together and proponents will @an ed based on s. In the
event of a tie, the selected proponent "I:.f}e_g%iected b
% S
References ’%, ,—6
ey
J”

The Region will contact references of the top-ran’f‘yd proponent to obtain a score
related to the reference scoring as indicated in Section D-6 of the RFP Particulars
(Appendix D). If the top-ranked proponent fails to achieve a passing score, the
Region may, without incurring any liability, withdraw the selection of that proponent

and proceed with the selection of the next top-ranked proponent.

Subiject to the reserved rights of the Region, the top-ranked proponent passing the
reference checks will be selected to enter into the agreement in accordance with

the following section.
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Regional Municipality of Durham RFP-1153-2021

Part 2 — Evaluation and Award

24

25

[End of Part 2]

Notice to Proponent.and Execution of Agreement

Notice of selectig on to the selected proponent shall be in writing. The
selected proponent sha cute the Agreement in the form attached as Appendix
A to this RFP and satisfy an pplicable conditions of this RFP, including the
FinakConditions of A tion D-5 of the RFP Particulars (Appendix

D), wit@ en (10) days of ng ion. This provision is solely for the benefit

of the Reg%,g@naay be
Failure to %e?ﬁﬁto Ag
&

In addition to all of'ﬂ’re Rgglon s other re ies, if a selected proponent fails to

execute the Agreem%or%ﬁsfy any
notice of selection, the'%gio%]ay, without incurri

selection of that proponeﬁgpnd rfgé\ceed wit

nditions within ten (10) days of
y liability, withdraw the

nother proponent.
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Regional Municipality of Durham RFP-1153-2021
Part 3 — Terms and Conditions of the RFP Process

Part 3 Terms and Condi

ions of the RFP Process

3.1 General Infor iC Instructions

3.1.2

3.1.3

314

RFP Incorporated i osal

P are deemed to be accepted by each

tions or contingent statements

RFP, including the terms in

of selectio’éf,/ may;be disqualifie a proponent is not disqualified despite
such chang%r éﬁalification ns of this RFP, including the
terms set out i@ppg%iices A and B will over any such changes or

qualifications in %prop’h‘ al.
T op

Proponents to Follow/Ins tions

0
Proponents should struc%th%propos in accordance with the
instructions in this RFP. Wh‘éig in%;mation is re
response made in a proposal ‘s;ﬁ'ould%erence
Q. e

numbers of this RFP. Jf;:
A
@

FP, any
section
e
%
Proposals in English ﬂ—]
<
All proposals are to be in English only. (’;.:ﬁ

No Incorporation by Reference

The entire content of the proponent’s proposal should be submitted in a
fixed form, and the content of websites or other external documents
referred to in the proponent’s proposal but not attached will not be

considered to form part of its proposal.
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Regional Municipality of Durham RFP-1153-2021
Part 3 — Terms and Conditions of the RFP Process

3.1.5

ins't"gytions.
@C} @)

3.1.6

3.1.7

3.1.8

3.1.9

References and Past Performance

(;

the proponen

In the e ess, the Region may include information provided by
ences and may also consider the proponent’s past

performance or con revious contracts with the Region or other

‘fﬁfor ation in RF,
Z 2,

(r‘
Thefﬁegi%e_nd its representation, warranty or
e
guarantee as@ the a rmation contained in this RFP or
issued b_f.g,ay@ ddenda. tities shown or data contained in this
RFP or provided b;(.uway of ad ates only, and are for the
<
sole purpose ndl@ng top ral scale and scope of

the Deliverables™ It is ﬂ%proponent’s o obtain all the

Proponents to Bear thﬁ\O\M?f Costs

_'1;;!'
The proponent will bear all ts $sociated with
preparation and presentation efits p"';s osal, in
incurred for interviews or demor@@ti
‘AP,

o
Proposal to be Retained by the R@on O
J?

cable, costs

A
The Region will not return the proposal or‘:’any accompanying
documentation submitted by a proponent.

Trade Agreements

Proponents should note that procurements falling within the scope of
Chapter 5 of the Canadian Free Trade Agreement (CFTA) or Chapter 19
of the Canada European Union: Comprehensive Economic and Trade
Agreement (CETA) are subject to that trade agreement but that the rights
and obligations of the parties will be governed by the specific terms of this
RFP.
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Regional Municipality of Durham RFP-1153-2021
Part 3 — Terms and Conditions of the RFP Process

3.1.10 No Guarantee of Volume of Work or Exclusivity of Contract

o, Region may cg

2

guarantee of the value or volume of work to be

pthe provision of the described Deliverables. The
) @ ers for goods and services the same as or

¢, P

Proponents s‘%p nptly e | of the uments comprising this
RFP, and )
Vo VA
T &
(@) shall report aﬁ%ro missions or
<

(b) may direct questio%\or seek addit
3

in writing through the Biddirf@ys?ém on or befor,
questions. All questions or cogﬁenf%aubmitte

the Bidding System shall be deeméd t?fg:e received o
been entered into the Bidding Systé'%,#and@ail ha
proponent confirming that the questionﬂf/(qs saved in the Bidding System

received by the

successfully. No such communications a'fé” be directed to anyone
outside of the Bidding System, and the Region shall not be responsible for
any information provided by or obtained from any source other than the
RFP Contact. The Region is under no obligation to provide additional
information. It is the responsibility of the proponent to seek clarification on
any matter it considers to be unclear. The Region shall not be responsible
for any misunderstanding on the part of the proponent concerning this

RFP or its process.
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Regional Municipality of Durham RFP-1153-2021
Part 3 — Terms and Conditions of the RFP Process

3.2.2

'Cj communicated

3.2.3

3.24

3.3 Notification and Debriefing

3.3.1

All New Information to Proponents by way of Addenda

Cj?ter“ | part of this REP and may, contain important information, including

ig |f|oq§i}chang [ 4 onents are responsible for obtaining

all %ssued b ion. ponents must confirm their receipt

of aII%gIenﬂg n their

If the Region ern*(i:“es that
the Deadline for1s: mgAddenda the

Deadline for a reas@?abg?ﬁenod o)

Verify, Clarify and Sup%gmeﬂt

sue an addendum after

onm xtend the Submission

A2
When evaluating proposalép —%glon may requ
from the proponent or third paf:ﬁjes Fn';mrder to v,
the information provided in the d@p\o ent’
received by the Region shall, if accepted by.the Regi

part of the proponent’s proposal.

Notification to Other Proponents

Once the Agreement is executed between the Region and a proponent,
the other proponents shall be notified by public posting in the same
manner that the RFP was originally posted of the outcome of the

procurement process.
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Regional Municipality of Durham RFP-1153-2021
Part 3 — Terms and Conditions of the RFP Process

3.3.2 Debriefing

g@l est a debriefing after receipt of a notification of the

outcome of the urement process. All requests must be in writing to the

purpose of providing an opportunity

de&;f ;ﬂng pre

to @Iler@&the pro
3.3.3 Procurg;;enf%rotest

or its outcome.

If a proponqﬁpw—gj{éﬁ cess, it should provide
written notice ta'the 8ﬁP Con ith the Region’s vendor
dispute mechanisf?)amq,\any applicabl ent or other
applicable bid prot r%dures. i vide a detailed
explanation of the pr@ne% concer rocurement process or
its outcome. JEC‘ "?,.

™Y

3.4 Conflict of Interest and Prohi’ba'.'te

7

3.4.1 Conflict of Interest G,-;ﬂ

The Region may disqualify a proponle%jor@‘]y conduct, situation or
circumstances, determined by the Regieﬁ; in its sole and absolute
discretion, to constitute a Conflict of Interest; as defined in the electronic

Submission Form.
3.4.2 Disqualification for Prohibited Conduct

The Region may disqualify a proponent, rescind a notice of selection or
terminate a contract subsequently entered into if the Region determines

that the proponent has engaged in any conduct prohibited by this RFP.
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Regional Municipality of Durham RFP-1153-2021
Part 3 — Terms and Conditions of the RFP Process

3.4.3 Prohibited Proponent Communications

engage in any communications that could constitute

3.4.p r'JL nent
7%

the fn'ﬁbdié{l_’@ielation or any agreement entered into pursuant

to thisRFP w&bout fir ini ritten permission of the RFP

Contact Vs
v, v

on@s must ctly or indirectly communicate with

C
3.4.5 No lobbying7/- /P%
% O
Proponents mustnat, in-felation to thi
selection process, &?gagégi{ectly indir rm of political or

other lobbying whatso Er tﬂ}fr&'ﬂuenc i successful

proponent(s). <N
N

3.4.6 lllegal or Unethical Conduét.), _*
A

Proponents must not engage in Qy illéﬁﬁ business pr;
activities such as bid-rigging, price-'n)“ng, fi ery, fr
collusion. Proponents must not engag"éhn any unethical conduct, including
lobbying, as described above, or other ingppropriate communications;
offering gifts to any employees, officers, agents, elected or appointed
officials or other representatives of the Region; deceitfulness; submitting
proposals containing misrepresentations or other misleading or inaccurate
information; or any other conduct that compromises or may be seen to

compromise the competitive process provided for in this RFP.
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Regional Municipality of Durham RFP-1153-2021
Part 3 — Terms and Conditions of the RFP Process

3.4.7

3.5 Confidential Information "
&

Past Performan

e or Past Conduct

J

0
3.51 Confidential Information
-
All information provided by r in any form in
connection with this RFP eiﬂ@y his RFP

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Page 17 of 22

is the sole property of the @gio
confidential; AT

5 O

ey
is not to be used for any purposé‘&her than replying to this RFP and
the performance of any subsequenﬁ%‘(;?ntract for the Deliverables;

must not be disclosed without prior written authorization from the

Region; and

must be returned by the proponent to the Region immediately upon

the request of the Region.



Regional Municipality of Durham RFP-1153-2021
Part 3 — Terms and Conditions of the RFP Process

3.5.2 Confidential Info

ation of Proponent

<) such informat ained by the Region, except as otherwise
r‘-‘%e urt or tribunal. Proponents are advised
ef}ropos i , be disclosed on a confidential basis
to 5\/ ise talned ion t0"advise or assist with the RFP

this RFP, q@§ti—? are to be

Z, <

3.6 Reserved Rights a?:;d L%itatlon of Liabili

3.6.1

D %
Reserved Rights G@he %glon

.
The Region reserves thé‘zlgh

(a) make public the name 'lfj a@ﬁr all propon
(7

(b) make changes, including sgbstantial changes, to t FP provided

e hy W
that those changes are issued by %of adde

'w?‘«

set out in this RFP; e
J‘

(c) request written clarification or the stﬁf ission of supplementary
written information in relation to the clarification request from any
proponent and incorporate a proponent’s response to that request for

clarification into the proponent’s proposal;

(d) assess a proponent’s proposal on the basis of: (i) a financial analysis
determining the actual cost of the proposal when considering factors
including quality, service, price and transition costs arising from the
replacement of existing goods, services, practices, methodologies

and infrastructure (howsoever originally established); and (ii) in
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Regional Municipality of Durham RFP-1153-2021
Part 3 — Terms and Conditions of the RFP Process

(i)

()

(k)

(1)
(m)

addition to any other evaluation criteria or considerations set out in

those proyi

R 7N .
disqualify a @90 , rescin otice
contract subse%nt y‘%tered into.
any conduct that bfeaches the pr

compromises or may@e ég%to compromise
e

process; Q. A
_?J'

by any proponent;

ion or terminate a

select a proponent other tl@,\th
the lowest cost to the Region;=", ~ _*

2.0

cancel this RFP process at any §Ipage;
-~
{."

cancel this RFP process at any stage and issue a new RFP for the

same or similar deliverables;
accept any proposal in whole or in part; or

reject any or all proposals;

and these reserved rights are in addition to any other express rights or any

other rights that may be implied in the circumstances.

Page 19 of 22



Regional Municipality of Durham RFP-1153-2021
Part 3 — Terms and Conditions of the RFP Process

3.6.2 Limitation of Liahility

(a) neither the Region
@ dvisors or representatives will be liable, under

JZ« g‘é ding but ts of preparation of the proposal, loss
'?(’" of prefits, lo or any other claim; and
& O
(b) ’?Ic:@ prowent walves any clai r any compensation of any kind

wh_é‘f%e\fgr' including clai r costs of preparation of the proposal,

loss of profit.gr loss of o

to not accept I@*’propos

an agreeméﬁ'})t)wft‘rﬁ/\any other pro

process, and‘t@'@p eﬁbpent S ave agreed to
<<

waive such righ@zla{fﬁ.

O

o
3.7 Governing Law and Inter ti
g pr@j’ﬂ d‘f;fﬂ

Q, A
These Terms and Conditions of the RFﬁﬁPro‘t%is (Part
Q. '«
are intended to be interpreted broadly and igd\epg:rig\ently (wi
provision intended to limit the scope of any o‘fﬁ/er proyision);

proponent, to enter into

ncel this proposal

are non-exhaustive and shall not be construed as‘intending to limit the pre-existing
rights of the Region; and ?{i“

are to be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the province
of Ontario and the federal laws of Canada applicable therein.

[End of Part 3]
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Regional Municipality of Durham RFP-1153-2021

Part 4 — Electronic Form Instructions

Part 4 Electronic Form lnstructions

4.1 Instructions omplete Pricing Form(s)

Pricing must be submitted el

instrlgions.
rovid

L
Rates ﬁ;yst 5%?
taxes e t ST.

lly in accordance with the Bidding System

inC funds, inclusive of all applicable duties and

Rates quo é’{iby proponhen lusive and must include all labour
and material ts,'aélhtravel [ all insurance costs, all costs of

delivery, all costs of installation i ding any pre-delivery inspection
charges, and allaf%r é'?‘/:%rhead, i y fees or other charges required by

law.
2. %

4.2 Evaluation of Pricifig ©.
Ve

Pricing will be scored based;jon é%jative p g for the rates set out in
the Pricing Form. Each propo@t \ﬁrj‘}_{jeceive e of the total possible
points allocated to price for the gé'(ticu‘f%’catego ' i ich will be
calculated in accordance with the f wi—l%ﬁormula.

f’ 1

Q, A
Lowest price + proponent’s price x @Clghﬁ’:ég = pro ng points

o <
Pricing calculation will be based on the Prici;%Flgr"’m (Appen
. O

4.3 Electronic Pricing Form(s) (Appendi)(fia
-
‘:,.r‘

Appendix C, Electronic Pricing Form(s) are availabfgfor viewing by registered plan
takers only on the Region’s bidding website. To view the pricing pages and submit
a bid for this opportunity, you will have to register for this bid opportunity (refer to
Part 1, section 1.6 Submission of Bids, sub-section 1.6.3 Bids to be submitted
Electronically). Once you have registered and become a plan taker for this bid
opportunity, you can click on the “Start Submission” button and follow the steps to

complete all the electronic forms necessary to complete your submission.
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Appendix C, Electronic Pricing Form, enter the total lump sum Upset Limit. The

Upset Limit includes Iting fees and reimbursable expenses, which are to
pany for the Services to be performed by the
Consultant / Company u icle 2 — Services of "Attachment 1 - Consulting

and Professional Services Agr ", and as further detailed in Appendix D.

The gaset E@It inclue
and exc#%e ta)@s but exclud

consultlnéz’ S

Limit unless%pr

O
Electronic Fo'FfE(sﬂ?Appe

The information subr‘n’iﬁed"lFI e elec
as per Appendix D, RF

costs, disbursements and applicable duty

review the instructions below-as w’é | as theg i ined in Section D-6

when completing the form(s)% {.2}

Information to be completed und e ‘{Fiespons each Rated

be entered

The maximum size limit for an uploaded dogg‘meﬂﬁ 500 MB
. 5 O
Appendix E — Breakdown of Resources and Rates
,..-*
The bidder shall use this form to list the team mer@ér(s) “‘Resources” responsible
for the deliverables outlined in Appendix D at the hourly rate “Rates” that will be
detailed on the invoices and progress memo, as further described in Appendix B -

Payment Process, and Appendix D - Payment.

[End of Part 4]
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